
APOLOGIES Committee Services
Tel. 01621 875791

Council Chamber 01621 859677
HEAD OF PAID SERVICE’S OFFICE
HEAD OF PAID SERVICE
Richard Holmes

17 September 2018

Dear Councillor

You are summoned to attend the meeting of the;

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE 

on TUESDAY 25 SEPTEMBER 2018 at 7.30 pm.

in the Council Chamber. Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon.

A copy of the agenda is attached.

Yours faithfully

Head of Paid Service

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP CHAIRMAN Councillor D M Sismey

VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor I E Dobson

COUNCILLORS Mrs B F Acevedo
J P F Archer
P G L Elliott
A S Fluker
B E Harker
M S Heard
Rev. A E J Shrimpton

Ex-officio non-voting Members: Councillors B S Beale MBE
Mrs M E Thompson

Please note: Limited hard copies of this agenda and its related papers will be available at the meeting.
Electronic copies are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk.

Unrestricted Document Pack

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



Page 3
For further information please call 01621 876232 or 875791

or see the Council's website – www.maldon.gov.uk.

AGENDA
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 25 SEPTEMBER 2018

1. Chairman's notices (please see overleaf)  

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 5 - 10)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Finance and Corporate Services 
Committee held on 31 July 2018, (copy enclosed).

4. Disclosure of Interest  

To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 
Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the 
agenda having regard to paragraphs 6-8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for Members.

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).

5. Public Participation  

To receive the views of members of the public on items of business to be considered by 
the Committee (please see below):
1. A period of ten minutes will be set aside.
2. An individual may speak for no more than two minutes and will not be allowed 

to distribute or display papers, plans, photographs or other materials.
3. Anyone wishing to speak must notify the Committee Clerk between 7.00pm and 

7.20pm prior to the start of the meeting.

6. Superfast Broadband in Maldon District  (Pages 11 - 22)

To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance, (copy 
enclosed).

7. Supplementary Estimates, Virements and Use of Reserves: 28 June - 31 August  
(Pages 23 - 26)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


Page 4
For further information please call 01621 876232 or 875791

or see the Council's website – www.maldon.gov.uk.

8. Medium Term Financial Strategy Update  (Pages 27 - 32)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

9. Human Resources Statistics - Quarter One 2018/19  (Pages 33 - 42)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

10. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 
urgent  

11. Exclusion of the Public and Press  

To resolve that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.

12. Crematorium Project Update  (Pages 43 - 48)

To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery, (copy enclosed).

13. Disposal of Land at Springfield Road, Burnham-on-Crouch  (Pages 49 - 76)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

NOTICES

Sound Recording of Meeting
Please note that the Council will be recording any part of this meeting held in open session 
for subsequent publication on the Council’s website.  At the start of the meeting an 
announcement will be made about the sound recording.  Members of the public attending the 
meeting with a view to speaking are deemed to be giving permission to be included in the 
recording.  

Fire
In event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green running 
man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  Please 
gather there and await further instruction.

Health and Safety
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.  There are 
steps behind the main horseshoe as well as to the side of the room.   

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV)
This meeting is being monitored and recorded by CCTV.

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


290

MINUTES of
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
31 JULY 2018

PRESENT

Chairman Councillor D M Sismey

Councillors Mrs B F Acevedo, A S Fluker, B E Harker and M S Heard 

Ex-Officio Non-
Voting Member

Councillor B S Beale MBE

Substitute Councillor H M Bass

309. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES 

The Chairman drew attention to the list of notices published on the back of the agenda.

310. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION NOTICE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J P F Archer and I E Dobson.  In 
accordance with notice duly given it was noted that Councillor H M Bass was attending 
as a substitute for Councillor Archer.

311. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 June 2018 
be approved and confirmed.

312. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 

Councillor A S Fluker declared a pecuniary interest as a Trustee of Stow Maries Great 
War Aerodrome and a Director of Stow Maries Great War Aerodrome Trading.

313. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No requests had been received.

Unrestricted Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



291

314. CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY 

The Committee received the report of the Director of Resources on Corporate Health 
and Safety activity for Quarter One (1 April to 30 June 2018).  A summary by 
Directorate and a description of the reported accidents and near misses were set out in 
the report.

Appendix 1 to the report provided details of progress with the Health and Safety Action 
Plan for 2018 / 19.

It was noted that there were four accidents and one near miss during quarter one and any 
follow up action was detailed.  There had been no incidents of unacceptable behaviour 
reported during this quarter.

Members were advised that following a legionella audit the Corporate Leadership Team 
had agreed an action plan to improve the management of this risk.  

RESOLVED 

(i) that the accident and incident statistics for quarter one be noted;

(ii) that progress with the Health and Safety Action Plan for 2018 / 19 be noted.

315. BUDGETARY CONTROL (APRIL - JUNE 2018) 

The Committee received the report of the Director of Resources providing Members 
with key financial information on the progress to date against the approved budget over 
the period 1 April – 30 June 2018.

The report detailed the variance analysis for the following areas:

 Revenue Budgets (as shown in Appendices 1 and 1A to the report);

 Vacancy savings (as shown in Appendix 2 to the report); 

 Agency expenditure;

 Major Sources of Income;

 Capital Projects (as shown in Appendix 3 to the report);

It was noted that current financial performance was within the approved budget limits.  
Capital projects were progressing, with further projects to start within the Council’s 
parks and open spaces and the Director of Customers and Community had reviewed 
resources to ensure estimated delivery times were achieved.

In response to a question regarding the Council’s current recruitment freeze, the 
Director of Resources advised that it was important to have this in place in light of the 
possible redundancies coming out of the Ignite Project.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

Page 6



292

316. SUPPLEMENTARY ESTIMATES, VIREMENTS AND USE OF RESERVES: 24 
MAY - 27 JUNE 2018 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources, reporting virements 
and supplementary estimates agreed under delegated powers to the Committee.  The 
report also reported on procurement exemptions and requested draw down on reserves.

Members noted that there had been:

 one procurement exemption in relation to Elections for the automated household 
registration form response system as there was no other contractor who provided 
the automated service.

 two requests for the use of the transformation reserve.  The first was for £12,000 
and related to an Ignite opportunity assessment and associated expenses.  The 
second was for £10,000 for financial modelling and advice on the commercial 
pipeline projects.

A request of £56,464 from the transformation reserve to cover the extension to the 
Information Governance Officer post until 30 November 2018 was detailed in the 
report.  In response to a question, the Director of Resources outlined what the monies 
would be used for.

RESOLVED

(i) that the procurement exemption granted during the period for the automated 
household registration form response system, be noted;

(ii) that the use of the transformation reserve for the Ignite project as detailed in 
paragraph 3.5.1 of the report be noted;

(iii) that use of £56,464 from the transformation reserve to cover extension of the 
Information Governance Officer post until 30 November 2018 be agreed. 

Councillor H M Bass joined the meeting during this item of business.

317. AIR QUALITY UPDATE AND PROPOSED DECLARATION OF AN AIR 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA ON MARKET HILL, MALDON 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Customers and Community, 
presenting a reference and recommendations from the Community Services Committee 
(attached at Appendix B to the report).  The report also sought Members’ approval of a 
supplementary estimate of £20,000 for the production of an Air Quality Action Plan.

It was noted that this matter had been referred to this Committee by the Community 
Services Committee following consideration of a report (attached at Appendix A) at its 
meeting on 10 July 2018.  

It was reported that whilst conducting a Local Air Quality Management process high 
levels of Nitrogen Dioxide had been identified in Market Hill, Maldon.  As the Market 
Hill failed to meet the relevant Air Quality Targets the Council was required to declare 

Page 7



293

it as an Air Quality Management Area.  An Air Quality Management Plan was now 
required and had to be submitted within 12 months of the declaration at a cost of 
£20,000.  A supplementary estimate was therefore requested for this cost.

It was noted that transport and highways was function of Essex County Council.  A 
number of concerns were raised by Members of the Committee, including the cost to the 
Council, whether the air quality of the Maldon High Street would also be affected and 
that contributions should be sought from the County Council.

Councillor D M Sismey proposed that the recommendation as set out in the report be 
agreed and that the Council write to Essex County Council seeking its contribution to 
this given that the matter related to their responsibility (highways) and that they provide 
Officers from the outset, as the key stakeholder responsible for transportation, so that 
any action plan has their support and could be implemented.  This was duly seconded 
and agreed.

RESOLVED

(i) That a supplementary estimate of £20,000 be approved to enable the production 
of an Air Quality Action plan to comply with legislation;

(ii) That the concerns raised by the Community Services Committee and Officer 
responses to these concerns be noted;

(iii) That the Council writes to Essex County Council, the key stakeholder 
responsible for highways, seeking its contribution to the production of an Air 
Quality Action Plan and requesting that they provide Officers from the outset to 
ensure that any Action Plan had their support and could be implemented.

318. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

In accordance with his earlier declaration Councillor A S Fluker left the meeting at this 
point and did not return.

RESOLVED that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.

319. OUTSTANDING LOAN - FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources, seeking Members’ 
consideration of the financial arrangements under a loan agreement with Stow Maries 
Great War Aerodrome (SMGWA).

Members were advised that the Council had received a request from SMGWA that 
consideration be given to defer payments of the loan agreement it had with the Council 
for 36 months.  Details of the request were included Appendix 1 to the report.  Further 
background and financial information relating to the loan were set out in the report.

Page 8



294

A lengthy debate ensued, during which a number of questions were raised and responses 
provided by the Director of Resources.

Councillor D M Sismey proposed that subject to the following conditions deferral of the 
loan payments be delegated to the Section 151 Officer in conjunction with the Chairman 
of this Committee:

 the Section 151 Officer being comfortable that SMGWA business plan supports 
payment of future monies to the Council and that deferral is necessary; 

 Essex County Council and any other organisations from whom loans have been 
made adopt the same procedure.

RESOLVED that subject to the following conditions deferral of the loan payments to 
the Council from Stow Maries Great War Aerodrome be delegated to the Section 151 
Officer in conjunction with the Chairman of the Finance and Corporate Services 
Committee:

 the Section 151 Officer being comfortable that the Stow Maries Great War 
Aerodrome business plan supports payment of future monies to the Council and 
that deferral is necessary; 

 Essex County Council and any other organisations from whom loans have been 
made adopt the same procedure.

There being no further items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 8.13 pm.

D M SISMEY
CHAIRMAN

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Item no. 7
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
25 SEPTEMBER 2018

SUPERFAST BROADBAND IN MALDON DISTRICT

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To update Members regarding the progress of delivery of the Superfast Essex 
Broadband Programme in Maldon District, with particular reference to those works 
that Maldon District Council has committed to co-fund.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That Members review and comment on the contents of this report.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 Background on Superfast Essex and its Aims

3.1.1 Superfast Essex is the county's broadband improvement programme, co-ordinated by 
Essex County Council, and part of the Government's national Superfast Britain 
programme.  The overall objective is to enable as many homes and businesses as 
possible to access superfast broadband to enable economic growth and improve 
residents' quality of life. 

3.1.2 Superfast Essex, which delivers the Superfast Essex Broadband Programme, operates 
under the BDUK Framework, a single-supplier framework set up by The Department 
for Culture, Media and Sports (DCMS).

3.2 Rationale for Public investment

3.2.1 To determine the areas eligible for investment and to ensure that the public funding is 
spent only to supplement the planned commercial roll out of high speed broadband, 
Essex County Council (ECC) requests all known broadband network operators, 
including BT and Virgin Media as well as wireless and other broadband technology 
operators, to submit a list of postcodes that their network covers in Essex.  Providers 
need to evidence that their network meets the European Union (EU) guidelines for 
Next Generation Access (NGA) broadband, which is kind of the EU code for 
superfast broadband.  Suppliers are asked to provide the number of premises for each 
post code:

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item no. 7

 that are currently capable of receiving superfast broadband via the supplier’s 
service;

 where the supplier plans to make superfast broadband available within three 
years.

3.2.2 Under EU State Aid regulations, any areas where there is no existing NGA coverage 
and none planned within the next three years can be declared as areas of Market 
Failure, and are therefore eligible for public subsidy.  Put in other words, these 
Market Failure areas are the post codes where Superfast Essex is legally allowed to 
invest.  In State Aid jargon, these post codes are also known as “NGA White” post 
codes.

3.3 Progress to date

3.3.1 Superfast Essex Phase 1 was completed in June 2016.  This phase extended high 
speed broadband services to 77% of premises across the District, increasing from a 
baseline of 38% of premises in 2013.

3.3.2 As part of the Phase 2a rollout, Maldon District is to receive a further 15% increase in 
connectivity to ensure that up to 92% of the 28,432 premises (homes and businesses) 
in the District can access superfast broadband.

3.3.3 Phase 2a will see fibre broadband rollout focused on parts of the most poorly served 
areas within the District, via the process of installations of Fibre-To-The-Cabinet 
(FTTC) technology.  In May 2016 Maldon District Council agreed to provide a 
contribution of £45,000, paid over three years to contribute to the delivery of Phase 2a 
(Minute No. 16 refers), and further detail regarding this commitment is included in 
section 3.2 below.

3.3.4 Phase 2a is still in progress and Phase 3 is planned to start in 2019.  Phase 2 and 3 are 
due for full completion by December 2019.

3.4 Details of the agreement for funding between Maldon District Council (MDC) 
and ECC

3.4.1 In 2014 Maldon District Council agreed in principle to provide funding of £90,994 to 
Phase 2a of the Superfast Essex programme, following a resolution of the Finance and 
Corporate Services Committee in its meeting of 29 July 2014 (Minute No. 301 refers).  
However this was subsequently renegotiated with Essex County Council.  

3.4.2 Following renegotiation with Essex County Council in April 2016, Maldon District 
Council agreed to contribute £45,000, paid over three years of the duration of Phase 
2a, as part of the Essex wide programme.  This agreement was formalised by Maldon 
District Council through both the Planning & Licensing and Finance and Corporate 
Services Committees in April 2016, and at the Statutory Annual meeting of the 
Council in May 2016:

Page 12



Agenda Item no. 7

Minute 1185 – Superfast Broadband in the Maldon District

RESOLVED 

(vii) that a capital contribution of £45,000 (paid over three years of the duration of 
phase 2a (i.e. Phase 2a for the whole of the Essex wide programme) that is 
required for funding Phase 2a of the Essex Superfast Broadband Programme, 
be agreed.

RESOLVED

(viii) that subject to the above decisions, the Minutes of the meeting of the Finance 
and Corporate Services Committee held on 19 April 2016, be adopted.

3.4.3 This contribution has not yet been transferred to Essex County Council and a meeting 
was subsequently arranged with Essex County Council in June 2018 to establish 
progress and to seek clarity on the trigger points for payment of the agreed funding.

3.5 Details of the progress to deliver the targeted Superfast Broadband 
improvements and proposed triggers for payment

3.5.1 At the time of the agreement to provide a contribution of £45,000 in 2016, the 
justification for the additional funding requirement was that in 2013 only 38% of 
premises in the Maldon District had the benefit of Superfast Broadband to the 
premises with connectivity at 24 mbps (Megabits per second) or more.  By the 
summer of 2016, this had increased to 77%, through the delivery of the Phase 1 
works. 

3.5.2 Phase 2a was to bring the number of connected premises up to 92% of premises in the 
District  if a contribution was made by Maldon District Council and to be significantly 
enhanced by the BDUK funding and supplier funding.  Approximately 930 premises 
were to be connected under this next phase.  A table showing the premises that would 
benefit, as agreed at that time is presented in APPENDIX 1.

3.5.3 According to the latest figures supplied by Superfast Essex at the Superfast 
Broadband Steering Board meeting on 15 August 2018, Maldon District is currently 
at 81.5% coverage (refer to APPENDIX 2).

3.5.4 At the Officer meeting of June 2018 it was agreed that ECC would draw up a bilateral 
funding agreement to cover the delivery of Phase 2a in Maldon District, to include 
details of the works to be undertaken, and trigger points for payment, as progress is 
still at a relatively early stage in delivering the 92% target, it has been suggested that 
the trigger for payments should be at stages of 50%, 75% and 100% of the programme 
targets this would equate to transfers of £15,000 at each trigger point up to the end of 
2019.

3.5.5 This funding agreement has not yet been provided by Essex County Council.  They 
indicated that they would be happy to accommodate the trigger points outlined.

Page 13



Agenda Item no. 7

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 While coverage levels in Maldon District are currently at 81.5%, according to 
Superfast Essex figures, reports received from businesses indicate that expected 
broadband speeds may not be experienced in the field.  We are more likely to hear 
from dissatisfied businesses, so these views may not be representative, but we are 
aware of a number of potential reasons for the perception that delivery of broadband 
in rural areas is not meeting expectations. 

4.2 Firstly, coverage figures provided by Superfast Essex do not guarantee that full 
speeds are being experienced across the area technically covered.  Superfast 
broadband is provided by FTTC technology with fibre optic cables to specific points 
(cabinets, colloquially referred to as green boxes).  Connections from cabinets to 
homes and businesses are provided by conventional copper wires.  Broadband speeds 
drop significantly when transmitted over copper wire and the effect is magnified over 
greater distances.  The cabinets also have a maximum capacity, so not all customers 
may be connected if the demand outstrips the available supply.  Finally, the customers 
have to opt in to the faster broadband service and this may be provided at additional 
cost, so not all customers take up the available faster service. 

4.3 Subject to the provision of the funding agreement by Essex County Council, and 
based on the resolution of the Council, MDC should therefore conclude an agreement 
with Superfast Essex in the form of a bilateral funding agreement to cover the 
delivery of Phase 2a in Maldon District with payment on meeting suitable delivery 
targets.

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 This report links to the corporate goal of “Creating opportunities for economic growth 
and prosperity” under the objective “improve connectivity”.

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – Indications have been received from customers and 
partners that superfast broadband speeds experienced, especially in rural areas, 
are not currently meeting expectations.

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None identified.

(iii) Impact on Risk – There is a risk that Maldon District Council will be in 
default of its financial commitments to support Superfast Essex if no funding 
is transferred by December 2019.  Conversely, if broadband speeds do not 
meet expectations there is a risk that the Council could face questions 
regarding inefficient application of resources.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – The Council has committed to support the 
Superfast Broadband rollout over three years of the duration of Phase 2a (2016 
to 2019), as part of the Essex wide programme.  No funding transfer has yet 
taken place.

Page 14



Agenda Item no. 7

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None.

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None.

Enquiries to: 
David Burrows, Economic Development & Partnerships Manager, (Tel: 01621 875825).

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

The following premises in Maldon District are to benefit from Phase 2A

Ward Parish / Town Streets to be connected

Bridgemarsh Lane

Chestnut Farm Drive

Fambridge Road

Green Lane  

Station Road

Althorne (6)

Sunningdale Road

Buchanan Way

Burnham Road

Heritage Way

Lawlinge Road

Lower Burnham Road

Snoreham Gardens

St Michaels Close

Steeple Road

Althorne (15)

Latchingdon (9)

The Street

Althorne and Mayland (1) Mayland (1) Steeple Road

Maldon Road
Mayland (2) Steeple (2)

The Street

Burnham Avenue

Latchingdon Road

Lower Burnham Road

Purleigh Grove

Purleigh (28) Cold Norton (6)

Station Road

Page 17



APPENDIX 1

Ward Parish / Town Streets to be connected

Victoria Road

Church Road

Rectory RoadNorth Fambridge (3)

Rookery Lane

Callowood Croft

Chapel Lane

Chelmsford Road

Church Hill

Fairfields

Fambridge Road

Hawthornes

Howe Green Road

Mill Hill

Mill Lane

Pump Lane

The Glebe

The Street

Thornhill

Walton Hall Lane

Purleigh (16)

Westerings

Church Lane

The Street

Purleigh (28) continued

Stow Maries (3)

Woodham Road 

Buttercup Way
Southminster (6) Southminster (6)

Lavender Drive

Page 18



APPENDIX 1

Ward Parish / Town Streets to be connected

Primrose Walk

Rose Drive

Smyatts Close

The Brambles

Burnham RoadWickham Bishops and 
Woodham (2)

Hazeleigh (2)
Lodge Road

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: Superfast Essex Coverage Forecast 
Number of premises Percentages Premises Premises 
Area Name Existing Existing and 

SFE Planned 
No 
Superfast 
Broadband 

change from 
May 

Existing Existing and 
SFE Planned 

No 
Superfast 
Broadband 

TOTAL change from 
May 

New Build 
or 
Regeneratio
n Site 

BASILDON 79,483 84,079 1,103 258 93.3 % 98.7 % 1.3 % 85,182 -132 584 
BRAINTREE 60,488 69,599 1,052 63 85.6 % 98.5 % 1.5 % 70,651 -114 331 
BRENTWOOD 31,813 34,611 1,775 16 87.4 % 95.1 % 4.9 % 36,386 -51 352 
CASTLE POINT 40,996 42,633 448 -32 95.2 % 99.0 % 1.0 % 43,081 -1,124 752 
CHELMSFORD 72,700 77,986 4,285 1 88.4 % 94.8 % 5.2 % 82,271 -79 1,730 
COLCHESTER 82,306 86,016 2,734 29 92.7 % 96.9 % 3.1 % 88,750 -151 971 
EPPING 
FOREST 

59,374 63,285 537 97 93.0 % 99.2 % 0.8 % 63,822 -147 439 

HARLOW 39,920 39,920 1,322 -76 96.8 % 96.8 % 3.2 % 41,242 -72 353 
MALDON 24,565 28,549 1,601 -15 81.5 % 94.7 % 5.3 % 30,150 -66 465 
ROCHFORD 33,164 36,442 774 -30 89.1 % 97.9 % 2.1 % 37,216 -27 242 
SOUTHEND 85,138 85,192 3,928 77 95.5 % 95.6 % 4.4 % 89,120 -48 649 
TENDRING 67,053 74,137 1,347 -96 88.8 % 98.2 % 1.8 % 75,484 -123 679 
THURROCK 69,153 69,302 2,887 -1,814 95.8 % 96.0 % 4.0 % 72,189 -125 301 
UTTLESFORD 33,580 39,716 1,655 16 81.2 % 96.0 % 4.0 % 41,371 -517 870 
Essex Total 779,733 831,467 25,448 91.0 % 97.0 % 3.0 % 856,915 8,718 
Status 10 August 2018 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item no. 7
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
25 SEPTEMBER 2018

SUPPLEMENTARY ESTIMATES, VIREMENTS AND USE OF RESERVES: 28 
JUNE-31 AUGUST

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To report virements and supplementary estimates agreed under delegated powers to 
this Committee.

1.2 To inform Members of procurement exemptions that has been granted in the period.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That Members are invited to review and comment on the procurement exemption set 
out in section 3.4 of this report.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 Rules and Regulations

3.1.1 The approval and reporting arrangements in relation to virements and supplementary 
estimates are set out in the Financial Regulations and Financial Procedures .  These 
are as follows:

Virements (movements) within the same budget head:

 Agreed by the relevant Director and the Director of Resources.

Virements between different budget heads:

 Up to £20,000 – Director and Director of Resources and reported in monthly 
Members Bulletin;

 Over £20,000 up to £50,000 – Director, Director of Resources, in Consultation 
with relevant Standing Committee Chairman and reported to the next Finance 
and Corporate Services Committee;

 Over £50,000 - the Finance and Corporate Services Committee.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item no. 7

Supplementary estimates: 

 Up to £20,000 – Director, Director of Resources and Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Finance and Corporate Services 
Committee and the Leader of the Council and reported to the next meeting of 
the Finance and Corporate Services Committee;

 Over £20,000 – the Finance and Corporate Services Committee.

3.1.2 The Contract Procedure Rules provide information in relation to procurement 
exemptions.  The exemption enables the council to waive any requirements within the 
contract procedure rules for specific projects.

3.1.3 Procurement exemptions should be signed by the Officer and countersigned by the 
Director of Resources and where appropriate the Chairman of the Finance and 
Corporate Services Committee.

3.2 Virements

3.2.1 There were no virement requests to report.

3.3 Supplementary Estimates

3.3.1 There were no supplementary estimates to report.

3.4 Procurement Exemptions  

3.4.1 One procurement exemption has been approved for the upgrade of the Land Charges 
software.  This is only available from the incumbent supplier hence the exemption 
request.

3.5 Drawdowns on Reserves

3.5.1 There are no requests for use of Reserves.

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 There are no supplementary estimates or virements to report.  Members are to note the 
procurement exemption. 

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 The adherence to the Financial Regulations and Financial Procedures contributes 
towards the corporate goal of ‘Delivering good quality, cost effective and valuable 
services’.

Page 24



Agenda Item no. 7

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – None identified.

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None identified.

(iii) Impact on Risk – None identified.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – These are discussed above.

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None identified.

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None identified.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Emma Foy, Director of Resources, (Tel: 01621 875762).

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item no. 8
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
25 SEPTEMBER 2018

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY UPDATE

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report is for Members to receive an update on the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) and approve the principles to be adopted for 2019 / 20 budget 
setting process.

1.2 The MTFS approved by the Council on 8 February, reported that £1.5m of savings 
were required to close the budget gap over a three-year period.  In order to meet this 
gap the Authority are implementing the Council’s Future Model, as well as looking 
for strategic and commercial opportunities to generate additional income.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to review and comment on the content of this report and to 
approve the principles to be adopted for the 2019 / 20 budget setting process as 
detailed below:

 The budget process will be carried out on a business as usual basis, with 
updates being made for the future model, as and when they are confirmed.

 No additional budget growth (including one-offs growths) will be added save 
for exceptional circumstances;

 The principle of zero based budgeting will apply for the 2019 / 20 budgets 
onwards; 

 The Council is to improve income generated through fees and charges 
following a review of the existing fees and charges policy;

 Review the Policy on Reserves and Balances to ensure that it supports the 
delivery of the corporate priorities;

 Capital funding will only be allocated if essential, value for money is 
demonstrated and the project is fully deliverable;

 All support service budgets will be centralised (i.e. legal), and,

 Key projects will be progressed for the commercialisation agenda through the 
Full Council Transformation.

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item no. 8

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 A review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) has taken place following 
the release of the consultation of the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2019 / 
20.  It is now estimated that savings of £2.0m will be required to close the budget gap 
to the end of the period 2022 / 23.  

3.2 The consultation has indicated that a review of the arrangements for negative Revenue 
Support Grant (RSG) has taken place, and that this will be eliminated for 2019 / 20.  
£330,000 has therefore been removed from the MTFS for 2019 / 20, but does not 
impact the overall savings target as it is a one off payment.  

3.3 The Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) are currently working with IGNITE to deliver 
the Council’s Future Model.  This is anticipated to deliver £1.489m of savings.  The 
finance team, have commenced a zero-based budget with no growth items and will be 
scrutinising the current year’s budget for underspends to inform this.  Figures for 
Council Tax and Business Rates will be reviewed in December when estimates for the 
next financial year are produced for Government.  

3.4 The table below shows the budget forecast for the period ending 31 March 2023:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 Savings

Baseline net expenditure 6,787 6,572 7,680 6,736 Required
Impact of Forward Pension Deficit Funding 0 1,722 -1,119 0
Temporary Posts ending 0 0 0 0
Other Cost Pressures -193 91 -22 0
Staff Inflation 155 73 80 81
Inflation provision 150 133 138 142
Change in level of specific grants 6 25 0 0
Projected (net) movement in income from fees and charges -13 85 44 0
Projected movement in misc income 33 33 0 0
Change in level of investment income 52 25 5 0
New Homes Bonus Fluctuation in Annual Payment 61 163 252 0
Contribution to/(Use) of General Fund balances 0 0 0 0
Contribution to/(Use) of Earmarked Reserves 603 -1,119 0 0
Projected net expenditure to be funded 7,642 7,803 7,057 6,959
Additional efficiency/income/saving required -466 -1,242 -322 -17 -2,047 

Council Future Model Savings -475 -723 -291 0

Net efficiency/income/saving required 9 -519 -31 -17 -558 

Medium Term Financial Strategy

3.5 Principles of the 2019 / 20 budget setting process

3.5.1 Key changes

3.5.1.1 The key financial changes impacting on the budget gap are summarised below:

 Natural Growth – As the MTFS moves on a year, additional costs are required 
for staff and contract inflation.  For 2020 / 21, the additional budgetary 
requirement for inflation is £223,000.

Page 28



Agenda Item no. 8

 Council Tax Sharing Agreement reduction – Under the existing Local Council 
Tax Sharing Agreement, Local Authorities receive 16p for every additional £1 
collected on behalf of the major precepting authorities; above a predetermined 
baseline.  The current contract expires in 2018 / 19 and the precepting bodies 
are looking to end this arrangement in its current form.  Currently a reduction 
of 2p a year is included to reduce the expected income to 12p/£1 over the next 
2 years.  This equates to an overall reduction of £86,000.

 District Election – 2019 / 20 is the year of the next District Election, so budget 
growth of £75,000 has been included in the MTFS to provide this service.

 Future Model IT costs – The Council’s Future Model requires new IT which 
brings additional revenue requirements of £170,000.  These have been 
included in the MTFS from 2020/21.

3.5.2 Collection Fund

3.5.2.1 The Collection Fund is an account that is administered by the Council for recording 
receipts from Council tax and business rates and payments to the General Fund and 
other public authorities, including Central Government.

3.5.2.2 At the end of 2017 / 18, the Council’s portion of Collection Fund was in a surplus 
position, for the 2018 / 19 budget setting process; it would seem prudent to estimate a 
collection fund surplus in the region of £100,000 for 2019 / 20.

3.5.2.3 The General Fund receives 100% of the business rates collected relating to Renewable 
Energy sites.  The budgeted income approved in February 2018 was £704,000, which 
includes a £50,000 contingency reduction for the in-year impact of successful appeals.

3.5.2.4 On 7 September, notification was received of a successful appeal dating back to 2013, 
relating to one of these sites.  This has resulted in a £286,000 backdated refund that 
will be met from the authority’s Business Rates Equalisation Reserve.  At present, the 
change to Rateable Value (RV) is only applicable to the 2010 listing, and therefore 
there is no impact on the MTFS.  However, clarification is being sought from the 
Valuation Office as to whether the 2017 ratings list will be reviewed and whether 
there will be any impact on the historic RVs of the other renewable energy sites in the 
District.  The MTFS will be reviewed and updated considering any additional 
information received.

3.5.3 Tax base

3.5.3.1 The District is anticipating a relatively high level of growth in housing numbers; the 
MTFS has been modelled based on an anticipated trajectory of these properties 
coming on line, an average of 326 properties per year over the four-year period, and 
will be reviewed when the Tax Base is set in Quarter two. 

3.5.4 Investment Income

3.5.4.1 Investment Income is a key income stream for the Council.  On 2 August, interest 
rates were increased for the second time in a 12-month period to 0.75%, however, this 
will not significantly impact on investment income as there are minimal balances in 
variable rate investments. 

Page 29



Agenda Item no. 8

3.5.5 Zero Based Budget and Zero Growth Budget

3.5.5.1 The 2019 / 20 budget will be built using the zero-base method.  Under this method all 
expenses must be justified for each new period and there will be no roll forward of 
previous budgets.  There will be no growth items introduced for the 2019 / 20 revenue 
budget unless a statutory requirement.

3.5.6 National Living Wage 

3.5.6.1 The Council has previously been committed to paying the National living wage 
Foundation rates.  This is payable on a voluntary basis and it is currently £8.75 per 
hour; the figure for the following year is released in the first week in November.  

3.5.6.2 For those employees where their hourly pay falls below this measure, a monthly 
supplement is added to their pay to bring it in line with the living wage amount.  The 
annual cost of the supplementary payments is around £3,000.

3.5.7 Public Sector Pay 

3.5.7.1 On 30 January 2018, the Finance and Corporate Services agreed a two year pay award 
of 2% for Officers and Directors, in line with national recommendations.  This has 
been included in the MTFS for 2018 / 19 and 2019 / 20 and reverts to 1% for 2020 
onwards.

3.5.8 Council Tax

3.5.8.1 The Council’s average band D council tax increases have been below the rate of 
inflation for the past five years.  The current consultation for the 2019 / 20 finance 
settlement indicates that government is expected to hold the Council Tax referendum 
threshold as per previous years.  For the purpose of the MTFS, the Council’s average 
council tax is assumed to be increased by 1.95% per annum throughout 2019 / 20 – 
2021 / 22.

3.5.9 Inflation

3.5.9.1 The following table shows the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and Retail Price Index 
(RPI) actual and forecast levels that have been included within the MTFS.  These are 
taken from the Office of Budget Responsibility’s March 2018 Economic and Fiscal 
Outlook:

CPI RPI
2018 / 19 2.2% 3.4%
2019 / 20 1.8 % 3.0%
2020 / 21 2.0 % 2.9%
2021 / 22 2.0% 2.9%

3.5.10 Reserves and Balances

3.5.10.1 It is anticipated that the Authorities reserve balances will be used in 2018 / 19 – 21 
to finance the Transformation Programme.  The Cost of the project reported to the 
Council on 9 August is £3.3m.  

Page 30



Agenda Item no. 8

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 The Council’s budget setting process integrates service and financial planning into a 
single process and aims to ensure that resource allocation both reflects corporate 
priorities and is affordable.

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 The Strategic and Financial Planning process contributes towards our Corporate Goal 
“Delivering good quality, cost effective and valuable services”.  

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – Consultations will be undertaken to listen to the 
views of customers and the community with the aim of responding to their 
needs where possible.

(ii) Impact on Equalities – Due regard to equality impact will be taken when 
making decisions arising from the 2018 / 19 budget setting process.

(iii) Impact on Risk – The implementation of the budget setting process is 
designed to minimise the risk of not having a robust Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – The process provides a framework for 
allocating resources.

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None arising from this report.

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Emma Foy, Director of Resources, (Tel: 01621 875762).

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item no. 9
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
25 SEPTEMBER 2018

HUMAN RESOURCES STATISTICS – QUARTER ONE 2018 / 19

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To present the Council’s Human Resource statistics for the period 1 April 2018 to 30 
June 2018.  The main purpose of the report is to provide an update on the levels over 
the past quarter of vacancies, staff turnover, sickness absence, staff numbers and staff 
data to meet equality standards.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the contents of this report are noted.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 This report is for Members’ information only.

3.2 Labour Turnover

3.2.1 Quarter 1 (Q1): The staff turnover was based on an average of 236.33 staff 
employed in post between 1 April 2018 and 30 June 2018.  There were 10 leavers and 
10 starters in Q1.

3.2.2 Service level turnover for Q1 2018 / 19 is as follows:

Directorate Leavers Reasons for 
Leaving

Q4
Average1

Headcount

Average Full 
Time Equivalent 

(FTE) per 
Service

% of Service 
Staffing that 
was a Leaver 
per Service

Corporate Core 0 n/a 8 7.41 0%

Resources 6

4 Resignations
1 End Fixed Term 
Contract (FTC)
1 Other

52.33 41.15 11.47%

Customers and 
Community 2 1 Resignation

1 Other 104 92.08 1.92%

1 Headcount figure averaged from month ends within each quarter.Please also note the above data does not include information on staff 
employed on zero hours contracts / seasonal staff contracts.

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item no. 9

Directorate Leavers Reasons for 
Leaving

Q4
Average1

Headcount

Average Full 
Time Equivalent 

(FTE) per 
Service

% of Service 
Staffing that 
was a Leaver 
per Service

Planning and 
Regulatory 2 1 Resignation

1 Other 72 62.5 2.78%

Total 10 236.33 203.14 4.23%

4. RECRUITMENT

4.1 As a consequence of the implementation of the Future Model, a recruitment freeze has 
been placed on all non-essential recruitment.  There has therefore been a low level of 
recruitment during Q1; a total of six external vacancies have been advertised; two 
posts have been within the Customers and Community Directorate, three posts within 
the Planning and Regulatory Directorate and one post in the Resources Directorate.

4.2 There has been one internal vacancy advertised in the Resources Directorate.

4.3 All external posts continue to be advertised on the Maldon District Council (MDC) 
website as well as via social media including Facebook and Twitter, Indeed (one of 
the largest and free of charge job search engines), and the Government website ‘Find 
a Job’ - and any other relevant professional journals / media where appropriate, 
ensuring as wide a reach as possible to potential candidates.

4.4 Please see below the external and internal vacancies for Q1 2018 / 19. 

4.5 Please note that all Members continue to be sent a list of all Council vacancies on or 
around 19th of every month.

Q1 External Vacancies:

Directorate Posts Advertised Positions

Post advertised on 
MDC website, 

Indeed, Find a Job, 
Twitter and 
Facebook

Senior Customers Officer (Maternity 
Leave) FTC 12 months 1 yesCustomers and 

Community Part Time Community Protection Officer 
FTC 4 months 1 yes

Resources Senior Technical Officer Re-advertised 1 yes

Corporate Fraud and Enforcement Team 
Leader 1 yes

Building Control Officer Re-advertised 1 yes
Planning and 
Regulatory 
Services Principal Planning Officer FTC 12 

months 1 yes

Total 6

Page 34



Agenda Item no. 9

Q1 Internal Vacancies: 

Directorate Posts Advertised Positions
Post 
advertised on 
intranet

Customers and 
Community 

Tourism and Events Manager (maternity 
cover) 1 yes

Total 1

5. STAFF SICKNESS LEVELS

5.1 The overall attendance figures (short and long term absence combined) for Q1 2018 / 
19 have decreased from 498.86 total FTE days lost in Q4 2017 / 18, to 434.72 total 
FTE days lost in Q1 2018 / 19 (2.47 total days lost per FTE in Q4 2017 / 18 compared 
to 2.13 total days lost per FTE in Q1 2018 / 19).

5.2 It should be noted that the Q1 total days lost per FTE figure of 2.13 is the lowest 
since Q1 2014 / 15.

5.3 The figures for Q1 18/19 with regard to short term sickness have decreased from 
300.62 total FTE days lost in Q4 2017 / 18 to 218.80 total FTE days lost in Q1 (1.49 
total days lost per FTE in Q4 2017 / 18 compared to 1.07 total FTE days lost in Q1 
2018 / 19).

5.4 The figures for Q1 2018 / 19 with regard to long term absence have increased slightly 
from 198.24 total FTE days lost in Q4 2017 / 18 to 215.92 in Q1 (0.98 total days lost 
per FTE in Q4 2017 / 18 compared to 1.06 total FTE days lost in Q1 2018 / 19).  
Despite this slight increase however, out of the five long term absence cases in Q1, at 
the time of writing: three of these staff have returned to work and two have left the 
organisation.

5.5 Please see Figure 1 below for the sickness for each quarter for 2016 / 17, 2017 / 18 
and 2018 / 19.

Page 35



Agenda Item no. 

Figure 1

Please find below the sickness for each quarter for 2016/17, 2017 / 18 and 2018 / 19.

Quarter One Quarter Two Quarter Three Quarter Four Cumulative Figures

2018 / 19
Total 

Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total Days 
Lost per 

FTE

Total 
Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total Days 
Lost per 

FTE

Total 
Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total 
Days Lost 
per FTE

Total 
Number of 
FTE Days 

Lost

Total 
Days Lost 
per FTE

Total 
Number of 
FTE Days 

Lost

Total 
Days 

Lost per 
FTE

Short Term Absence 218.80 1.07
Long Term Absence 215.92 1.06

Total 434.72 2.13

Quarter One Quarter Two Quarter Three Quarter Four Cumulative Figures

2017 / 18
Total 

Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total Days 
Lost per 

FTE

Total 
Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total Days 
Lost per 

FTE

Total 
Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total 
Days Lost 
per FTE

Total 
Number of 
FTE Days 

Lost

Total 
Days Lost 
per FTE

Total 
Number of 
FTE Days 

Lost

Total 
Days 

Lost per 
FTE

Short Term Absence 163.65 0.85 230.32 1.25 322.64 1.64 300.62 1.49 1017.23 5.23
Long Term Absence 393.05 2.04 198.64 1.08 300.12 1.53 198.24 0.98 1090.05 5.63

Total 556.70 2.89 428.96 2.33 622.76 3.17 498.86 2.47 2107.28 10.86

Quarter One Quarter Two Quarter Three Quarter Four Cumulative Figures

2016 / 17
Total 

Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total Days 
Lost per 

FTE

Total 
Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total Days 
Lost per 

FTE

Total 
Number 
of FTE 

Days Lost

Total 
Days Lost 
per FTE

Total 
Number of 
FTE Days 

Lost

Total 
Days Lost 
per FTE

Total 
Number of 
FTE Days 

Lost

Total 
Days 

Lost per 
FTE

Short Term Absence 237.94 1.25 241.39 1.21 259.46 1.31 306.53 1.55 1045.32 5.32
Long Term Absence 290.83 1.52 372.46 1.89 393.37 1.99 331.78 1.68 1388.44 7.08

Total 528.77 2.77 613.85 3.1 652.83 3.3 638.31 3.23 2433.76 12.4

P
age 36



Agenda Item no. 9

6. ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE

6.1 A) Manager Compliance

6.1.1 The March 2018 Attendance Management Audit recommended that regular 
compliance monitoring of controls within the Managing Attendance Policy should 
take place.  Compliance against the completion of return to work meetings by 
managers following employee sickness absence is now measured.

6.1.2 In Quarter 1, 70% of return to work meetings were held within two days, with the 
average completion time overall being 2.41 days.  The target for completion is two 
days.

No. of days taken by 
manager to complete return 

to work meeting
No. of managers % Completion

0 – 2 days 51 70
3 – 7 days 16 22
8 – 30 days 6 8
30+ days 0 0

Figure 2 

0 – 2 days 3 – 7 days 8 – 30 days 30+ days
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0 – 2 days
3 – 7 days
8 – 30 days
30+ days

No. of days taken for manager to complete return to work 
meeting 

6.1.3 Reasons for non-completion within the target period were managers being on annual 
leave, off sick or the employee failing to complete the return to work form within 
given timescales, which subsequently triggers a reminder for the manager to complete 
the return to work meeting.  Where non-compliance is for no reason and continues, 
this is reported initially to the Group Manager, People, Performance and Policy and a 
meeting is arranged to discuss the matter with the respective manager.  If non-
compliance continues, this is reported to the relevant Director for appropriate action.  

Page 37



Agenda Item no. 9

Managers were recently reminded that return to work meetings should ideally take 
place on the employee’s first day back following a period of sickness absence but in 
any case within the two days following the employee’s return.

6.2 B) Employee Compliance

6.2.1 The completion of self-certification by employees is also monitored to ensure 
compliance with Policy.  The Policy currently states that these should be completed 
‘as soon as possible and prior to the return to work meeting’. 85% of staff completed 
this within 2 days, and 12% completed between 3-7 days.  The average completion 
time is 1 day.

6.2.2 Staff were recently reminded that self-certification forms should be completed on the 
first day back in the office, to enable these to be referred to by the line manager at the 
return to work meeting.

No. of days taken by 
employee to complete self-

certificate
No. of employees % Completion

0 – 2 days 62 85
3 – 7 days 9 12
8 – 30 days 2 3
30+ days 0 0

Figure 3 

0 – 2 days 3 – 7 days 8 – 30 days 30+ days
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

No. of employees

No. of days taken for employee to complete self-certification 
form

7. WORKFORCE STATISTICS

7.1 Please see APPENDIX 1 attached to this report for the key statistics relating to staff 
including headcount, age profile, gender, sex and ethnic origin across the workforce. 

Page 38



Agenda Item no. 9

8. FUTURE MODEL

8.1 Human Resources continue to work closely with the Corporate Leadership Team 
(CLT) and Ignite regarding the implementation of the people, culture and change 
work streams under the Future Model.  At the time of writing (August 2018), work is 
well under way to devise the final People and Culture and Change implementation 
plan which outlines the key milestones and deliverables during mobilisation and 
Phases 1 and 2.  In summary, staff consultation will commence on 17 September and 
will end on 17 October 2018, at which point the recruitment or slotting of staff into 
Phase 1 will commence.

8.2 The People, Performance and Policy (PPP) team will continue to play an active role in 
the staff wellness and support agenda during the transformation, and will continue to 
work closely with managers, staff and various staff working groups.

8.3 Further details on the implementation of the people, culture and change work streams 
under Ignite will be reported in the overall Future Model strategic reports at Council 
Meetings.

9. CONCLUSION

9.1 As a consequence of the implementation of the Future Model, a hold has been placed 
on all non-essential recruitment.  There has therefore been a low level of recruitment 
during Q1.

9.2 The overall attendance figures (short and long term absence combined) for Q1 18/19 
have decreased from 498.86 total FTE days lost in Q4 17/18, to 434.72 total FTE days 
lost in Q1 18/19 (2.47 total days lost per FTE in Q4 17/18 compared to 2.13 total days 
lost per FTE in Q1 18/19).

9.3 It should be noted that the Q1 total days lost per FTE figure of 2.13 is the lowest 
since Q1 14/15.

9.4 Human Resources continue to work closely with the CLT and Ignite regarding the 
implementation of the people, culture and change work streams under the Future 
Model.

10. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

10.1 The effective implementation of the Attendance Management policy, including high 
levels of compliance with the policy, is critical to ensure that staff attendance levels 
are kept at the highest possible level to ensure resourcing is adequate in order to 
deliver an effective and efficient service for our customers.

Page 39



Agenda Item no. 9

11. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – No direct impact on customers from this report, 
although the wider staff context concerning recruitment, vacancies and 
sickness has an impact on the ability to deliver services to customers. 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – More detailed information on the protected 
characteristics of the Council’s workforce, is now available on the new Human 
Resources system.  This will allow the team to consider the needs of those 
groups when writing new Policies and Procedures and when carrying out its 
functions.  

(iii) Impact on Risk – Effective and proactive management of staff sickness and 
recruitment helps mitigate risk. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – The cost of advertisements and other 
necessary costs related to recruitment are included within current approved 
budgets.

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – Human Resources continues to regularly 
provide advice and guidance to both employees and managers on how best to 
manage attendance using the good practice steps outlined within the Managing 
Attendance Policy and Procedure.  Staff absences do affect direct colleagues 
and this is addressed by the use of the Managing Attendance Policy with 
individuals.

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: 
Dawn Moyse, Group Manager, People, Performance and Policy, (Tel: 01621 875869) or 
Helena Beattie, Senior HR Business Partner / Team Leader, (Tel: 01621 876281).

Page 40



APPENDIX 1

Workforce Statistics: Quarter One 2018/19

1. Headcount and FTE by Gender*1

2. Number of Full and Part Time Employees by Gender*1

3. Headcount by Directorate

Section

Number of staff in 
QTR 1

(Average*2)

Number of staff in 
QTR 2

(Average*2)

Number of staff in 
QTR 3

(Average*2)

Number of staff in 
QTR 4

(Average*2)

Corporate Core 8

Resources 52.33

Customers & 
Community

104

Planning & 
Regulatory

72

Total 236.33

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Female Headcount 154

FTE 123.98

% Workforce 65.25%

Male Headcount 82

FTE 77.83

% Workforce 34.75%

Total Headcount 236

FTE 201.81

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE

Full Time 74 83

Part Time 8 71

Total 82 154

Page 41



APPENDIX 1
4. Headcount by Ethnic Group*1

*1 Headcount data extracted from last date in reported quarter. Please also note the above data does not include information on staff employed on zero hours 
contracts / seasonal staff contracts.

*2 Headcount figure averaged from month ends within each quarter.

Quarter
1

Quarter
2

Quarter
3

Quarter
4

A White British 168

A White English 48

A White Irish 3

A White Scottish 2

A White Welsh 1

B Mixed White & Asian 1

B Mixed White & Black African

B Mixed White & Black Bangladeshi

C Asian, Asian British Bangladeshi 2

C Asian, Asian British Indian

C Asian, Asian British Pakistani

D Black, Black British African

D Black, Black British Caribbean
E Chinese, Chinese British / other ethnic 
Chinese 1

F Other 3

G Prefer not to say 7

TOTAL 236

Page 42



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	6 Superfast Broadband in Maldon District
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	7 Supplementary Estimates, Virements and Use of Reserves: 28 June - 31 August
	8 Medium Term Financial Strategy Update
	9 Human Resources Statistics - Quarter One 2018/19
	Appendix 1

	12 Crematorium Project Update
	13 Disposal of Land at Springfield Road, Burnham-on-Crouch
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


